




Public Notice 

Pursuant to Washoe County Code Section 110.820.23 and 110.821.20 public notification 
consists of notification by mail of at least 30 separate property owners within a minimum 
750-foot radius of the subject property.  This proposal was noticed within a 1,300-foot
radius of the subject property, noticing 42 separate property owners.
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From: Program, EMS
To: Weiche, Courtney
Cc: Program, EMS
Subject: FW: September Agency Review Memo II - Master Plan Amendment Case Number WMPA25-0004 and Regulatory

Zone Amendment Case Number WRZA25-0005 (Sunset Ranch)
Date: Wednesday, September 24, 2025 12:17:32 PM
Attachments: September Agency Review Memo II.pdf

image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png
image008.png
image009.png
image010.png
image011.png

Good Afternoon,

The EMS Program has reviewed the September Agency Review Memo II - Master Plan
Amendment Case Number WMPA25-0004 and Regulatory Zone Amendment Case
Number WRZA25-0005 (Sunset Ranch), and has no concerns or questions at this time
based on the information provided.

Thank you

April Miller
Sr. Office Specialist
Population Health Division

O: 775-326-6049
1001 E Ninth St. Bldg. B Reno, NV 89512

NNPH.org

From: Roman, Brandon <BRoman@washoecounty.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, September 18, 2025 12:57 PM
To: Huff, Shawn <SHuff@washoecounty.gov>; Giesinger, Chad <CGiesinger@washoecounty.gov>;
Pekar, Faye-Marie <FPekar@washoecounty.gov>; Mullin, Kelly D. <KMullin@washoecounty.gov>;
Ertell, Doreen <DErtell@washoecounty.gov>; Pascual, Katrina A. <KPascual@washoecounty.gov>;
Hein, Stephen <SHein@washoecounty.gov>; Fink, Mitchell <MFink@washoecounty.gov>; Rigdon,
Kimberly <KRigdon@washoecounty.gov>; Weiss, Timber A. <TWeiss@washoecounty.gov>; Wimer,
Robert <RWimer@washoecounty.gov>; Smith, Dwayne E. <DESmith@washoecounty.gov>; Thomas,
Janelle K. <JKThomas@washoecounty.gov>; Reede, Michon <MReede@washoecounty.gov>; Barrett-
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Application Review Memorandum II 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Reviewing Agencies 


Subject: Review of Applications Submitted September 2025 �± Memo II 


From: Planning and Building Division 
Community Services Department 


 
____________________________________________________________________________ 


 
Agency Review Process  


Each project application received through the Planning and Building Division is sent to applicable 
agencies for review and analysis.  Each agency is responsible for providing comments and/or 
conditions for the applications to the Planning and Building Division.  Relevant agency comments will 
be included in the staff report and agency conditions will be incorporated as Conditions of Approval. 


Comments and Conditions are requested according to the above-noted schedule and may be submitted 
to the staff planner listed for each case. 


Project Descriptions:  Project descriptions are provided below with links to the applications, or you 
�P�D�\���Y�L�V�L�W���W�K�H���3�O�D�Q�Q�L�Q�J���D�Q�G���%�X�L�O�G�L�Q�J���'�L�Y�L�V�L�R�Q���$�S�S�O�L�F�D�W�L�R�Q�V�¶���Z�H�E�V�L�W�H���D�Q�G���F�K�R�R�V�H���W�K�H���F�R�U�U�H�F�W���&�R�P�P�L�V�V�L�R�Q��
District page by typing in the following URL into your browser:  
www.washoecounty.gov/planning/applications 


 


1. Master Plan Amendment  Case Number  WMPA24-0001 and Regulatory Zone Amendment 
Case Number WRZA24-0001 (Campo Rico ) �± For hearing, discussion, and possible action to: 
(1) Approve an amendment to redesignate three parcels totaling 30.86 acres from Suburban 


Residential (SR) to Industrial (I) and one 10.01-acre parcel from Rural Residential (RR) to 
Industrial (I);  


AND 


(2) Recommend adoption of an amendment to the Spanish Springs Regulatory Zone Map, to 
redesignate three parcels totaling 30.86 acres from Low Density Suburban (LDS) to Specific 
Plan (SP) and one 10.01-acre parcel from Low Density Rural (LDR) to Specific Plan (SP). The 


Agency Comments and Conditions Due as Follows:  
 


#1 �± #5 �± Agency Comments and Conditions Due �± September  26, 2025 


The following case is tentatively scheduled to be heard by  


#1 �± Planning Commission �± November 4, 2025  


























Pﬁi;Iic Heal*h




















Click here to take our customer satisfaction survey





 
 
 
 

 

Engineering and Capital Projects 

1001 E. 9th Street Reno, NV 89512   |   P: (775) 328-3600   |   F: (775) 328-3699   |   washoecounty.gov 
 

 
Date: September 26, 2025 
 
To: Courtney Weiche, Senior Planner 
 
From: Janelle K. Thomas, P.E., C.F.M., Senior Licensed Engineer 

Robert Wimer, P.E., Licensed Engineer 
 
Re: Master Plan Amendment WMPA25-0004; Regulatory Zone Amendment WRZA25-0005 

APN 055-042-37 
 

GENERAL PROJECT DISCUSSION   
 
Washoe County Engineering and Capital Project staff have reviewed the above referenced 
application.  The Engineering and Capital Projects Division recommends approval with no 
additional comments or conditions.  
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From: Pekar, Faye-Marie
To: Weiche, Courtney
Subject: Master Plan Amendment Case Number WMPA25-0004 and Regulatory Zone Amendment Case Number WRZA25-

0005 (Sunset Ranch)
Date: Wednesday, September 24, 2025 4:35:42 PM
Attachments: Outlook-xzun0awr.png

Outlook-detsq5xw.png
Outlook-zmkjow5n.png
Outlook-s33o3w4e.png
Outlook-wuymbwag.png

Hi Courtney, 

I have reviewed WMPA25-0004 and Regulatory Zone Amendment Case Number
WRZA25-0005 (Sunset Ranch) on behalf of Parks. I do not have any comments to
provide. 

Thank you, 

Faye-Marie 

Faye-Marie L. Pekar, MPA, CPRP
Park Planner
Community Services Department | Regional Parks and Open Space
fpekar@washoecounty.gov | 775.328.3611
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, NV 89512

     
 
Have some kudos to share about a Community Services Department employee or experience?
Submit a nomination for a Washoe Star by clicking this link: WASHOE STAR
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From: Donohue, Jen
To: Weiche, Courtney
Subject: Fw: WRZA25-0005 (Sunset Ranch)
Date: Thursday, September 25, 2025 8:57:30 PM

Hi Courtney,

This project shall meet and comply with all requirements of currently adopted TMFPD fire codes,
ordinances, and standards at the time of construction to include infrastructure for fire apparatus
access roads and water supply. https://tmfpd.us/fire-code/

a.  Fire apparatus access roads shall be provided and maintained per IFC Section 503 and Appendix
D. Given the private unpaved access road currently serving the site, improvements and dedication of
access easements will be required at mapping or the building stage. Secondary access may be
required depending on final road lengths, grades and fire flow availability. 

b. Water supply shall be provided per IFC Section 507 and Appendix B and C. 

c. Automatic fire sprinkler protection may be required for future dwellings in compliance with IFC
903.2 and TMFPD amendments. 

Thank you.
Jen Donohue
Fire Plans Examiner | Truckee Meadows Fire & Rescue
jdonohue@tmfpd.us | Cell: 775.447-5780
3663 Barron Way, Reno, NV 89511
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Engineering and Capital Projects 

 
 
Date: September 24, 2025 
 
To: Courtney Weiche, Senior Planner 
 
From: Timber Weiss, P.E., Licensed Engineer 
 
Re: Master Plan Amendment Case Number WMPA25-0004 and Regulatory Zone 

Amendment Case Number WRZA25-0005 (Sunset Ranch) 
 
GENERAL PROJECT DISCUSSION 
  
For hearing, discussion, and possible action to: 
(1) 
Adopt an amendment to the Washoe County Master Plan, South Valleys Master Plan 
Land Use Map, to change the master plan land use designation for a ±41.7 -acre parcel 
(APN: 055-042-37) from Rural (R) to Rural Residential (RR); and if approved, authorize 
the chair to sign a resolution to this effect. Any adoption by the Planning Commission is 
subject to approval by the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners and a finding 
of conformance with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan by the regional planning 
authorities. 
And 
(2) 
Subject to final approval of the associated master plan amendment and a finding of 
conformance with the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan, recommend adoption of an 
amendment to the South Valleys Regulatory Zone Map, to change the regulatory zoning 
on the same parcel from General Rural (GR) to Medium Density Rural (MDR); if approved, 
authorize the chair to sign a resolution to this effect.  
 
The Community Services Department (CSD) recommends approval of this project 
with the following Water Rights conditions: 
 
There are no water rights conditions for this amendment. Water rights will need to be 
relinquished in support of any subdivision of the subject parcel. 
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Sunset Ranch

Washoe County
Neighborhood Meeting

August 25, 2025

Master Plan Amendment & Zone Change
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West Washoe Valley

» East of Frank Town 
Road and Old US 395 
intersection (north)

» Sunset Ranch LLC 
(±578 acres)

Location
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Project Parcel

» APN 055-042-37

» One parcel of the Sunset 
Ranch properties

» ±41.7-acres 

Location

APN
055-042-37

4840
Old US 395

4814
Old US 395

4850
Old US 395

4935
Old US 395

4955
Susan Lee Cir.
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Current Master Plan & Zoning

Master Plan:
Rural (R)

Zoning :
General Rural (GR)
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General Rural (GR)
to

Medium Density Rural 
(MDR)

Proposed Request
Master Plan Amendment (MPA): Regulatory Zone Amendment (RZA):

Rural (R)
to

Rural Residential 
(RR)
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Master Plan Amendment
» Current Rural Master Plan only allows 

zoning with minimum 40 acre lots:
• General Rural (GR)
• General Rural Agriculture 
• Public & Semi-Public Facilities 
• Parks and Recreation
• Specific Plan
• Open Space

C
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e

» Proposed Rural Residential Master Plan 
allows zoning compatible to surrounding 
uses:

• Low Density Rural
• Medium Density Rural (MDR)
• High Density Rural
• Public & Semi-Public Facilities 
• Parks and Recreation
• Specific Plan
• Open Space
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General Rural (GR) to Medium Density Rural (MDR)

Regulatory Zone Amendment
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EXHIBIT E



Regulatory Zone Amendment

» Current General Rural (GR) zoning only allows 
minimum 40-acre residential lots.

» Proposed Medium Density Rural (MDR) zoning 
allows a minimum of 4-acre lots. 

• Compatible with zoning to the west along Old US 395
• Avoids “spot zoning”
• Minimum 5 acres lots allowed on well and septic
• Allowed uses in the MDR zone are more limited than 

what is currently allowed in the existing GR zone

C
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Next Steps
 Neighborhood Meeting (Today, August 25th)

 Submit Master Plan Amendment (MPA) and Regulatory Zone Amendment (ZMA) Application 
to Washoe County 
• September 8th

 County staff reviews request and publishes staff report with recommendation to Planning 
Commission

 Planning Commission Meeting for MPA and RZA
• Tentative date (November 4th)

 Board of County Commissioners Meeting

 Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA), Regional Planning Commission 
Meeting (MPA)

C
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Sunset Ranch MPA & RZA

C
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ve
r L
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e

Eric Hasty
ehasty@woodrodgers.com
775.823.9770

Comments/Questions:

Washoe County Contact:
Christopher Bronczyk
Planner
cbronczyk@washoecounty.us
775.328.3612

Washoe County HUB:
https://neighborhood-washoe.hub.arcgis.com

General Rural (GR)
to

Medium Density Rural (MDR)

Master Plan: Zoning:
Rural (R)

to
Rural Residential (RR)
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Neighborhood Meeting Summary  Page 1 of 1 

Project Name:  

Meeting Location:  

Meeting Date:  

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

Neighborhood Meeting 

SUMMARY 
 

Virtual Meeting Option Provided:          YES               NO 

Hosted By (Name):   ________________________________   (Company):   _______________________ 

    Contact (Email):   ________________________________        (Phone):   _______________________ 
 

Public Concerns: 

1. ___________________________________________________________________________ 

2. ___________________________________________________________________________ 

3. ___________________________________________________________________________ 

4. ___________________________________________________________________________ 

5. ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Changes Made to Proposal (if applicable): 

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

Any Additional Comments: 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

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
Virtual (zoom)
8/25/2025

Eric Hasty Wood Rodgers
ehasty@woodrodgers.com 775-823-9770

Site access from US 395, future development, and the loss of agricultural land in West Washoe Valley.

Questions about how to provide comments regarding the request to Washoe County Staff/Representatives.

Concerns about future lot size and compatibility with the existing lots in West Washoe Valley.

Environmental impacts and potential drainage impacts caused by future development.

Site access and potential future development allowed in the MDR zone will be addressed in application.

The process, future public meetings, staff's contact information, and the HUB website were shared with the group.

Future lot size and compatibility with adjacent properties will be addressed in the application.

Future development will be discussed in the application.

A copy of presentation was shared with several neighbors who provided their email and a recording of the

meeting has been provided on the HUB website.
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FIRSTNAME LASTNAME MAILING1 MAILING2 MAILCITY MAILSTATE MAILZIP
SUNSET RANCH LLC 4814 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
WASHOE COUNTY 1001 E 9TH ST BLDG A ATTN COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPT RENO NV 89512
COLONNA LIVING TRUST 855 WASHOE DR WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

PETER A TRAPOLINO TRUST et al 100 WILL SAUER RD C/O CORTNEY WEBB WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
RYAN & HAYLEY MARX et al 4955 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
VERONICA J VAN HORN TRIPLETT et al 4850 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
DAVID SCHMENK LIVING TRUST 1445 TIROL DR INCLINE VILLAGE NV 89451
ROBERT E YARHI 11005 STEAD BLVD RENO NV 89506

CAVIN FAMILY 2019 TRUST 4790 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
DAVID SCHMENK LIVING TRUST 1445 TIROL DR INCLINE VILLAGE NV 89451
SUSAN HOFFMAN LIVING TRUST et al 2500 OLD RANCH RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

DAVIS FAMILY TRUST 2094 E DESERT GARDEN DR TUCSON AZ 85718
JOHN S & LINDA E KIJEWSKI 18035 LAKE VISTA RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
HENRY V SR BECKER TRUST 4785 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
SAM CHACON 2017 FAMILY TRUST 40 WILL SAUER RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

400 WILLIAM BRENT LLC 963 TOPSEY LN STE 306 #312 CARSON CITY NV 89705
APSARA FARMS LLC 5005 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
BULL RUN LTD PTSP 963 TOPSY LN STE 366 C/O JEFF ROSENBERY GP CARSON CITY NV 89705
BITTMAN FAMILY TRUST 2600 OLD RANCH RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
LEE FAMILY TRUST 4935 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
BLUEBERG FAMILY TRUST 4841 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

JESSE HILKER et al 2250 PEAVINE CREEK RD RENO NV 89523
HEALY FAMILY TRUST et al 4957 FRANTKOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

TRAVIS J & KATHRYN A ELLIOTT 4705 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
JOSEPH G & CAROL J GANZ 4965 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
MELVIN L & REBECCA F WILLIAMS 4799 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704

PITTS FAMILY TRUST 4765 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
ROBERT E YARHI 11005 STEAD BLVD RENO NV 89506

KEEGAN FAMILY 2019 TRUST 4955 SUSAN LEE CIR WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
VAN HORN LIVING TRUST 4840 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
ATJ HOLDINGS LLC 10411 CHADWELL DR RENO NV 89521

LEBO NEWMAN 4795 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
CATHERINE C FAWCETT TRUST 60 WILL SAUER RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
MICHAEL C & KRISTINA N JERAULD 4951 FRANKTOWN RD WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
JOHN A WARREN 4755 OLD US HIGHWAY 395 N WASHOE VALLEY NV 89704
KRYSTINA D HASHIMOTO TRUST 1426 FOOTHILL RD RENO NV 89511

C BRONCZYK WASHOE COUNTY CSD - PLANNING 1001 E 9TH ST, BLDG A RENO NV 89512
DISTRICT 2 WASHOE COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE 1001 E 9TH ST, BLDG A ATTN: COMMISSIONER CLARK RENO NV 89512
COMMISSIONER SUPPORT WASHOE COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE 1001 E 9TH ST, BLDG A ATTN: DISTRICT #2 RENO NV 89512
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 Neighborhood Meeting 

Dear Property Owner: 

You are invited to attend a virtual neighborhood meeting to discuss a proposed master plan and regulatory 
zone amendment in your area. This is your opportunity to review the proposal, ask questions and provide 
feedback prior to submittal of a formal application. 

Neighborhood Meeting Information: 
5:30 pm, MONDAY, August 25, 2025 

Via Zoom:  https://bit.ly/4m8LaoB  

Project Description: 
This project site is located at 5000 Old US 395 in Washoe Valley the intersection of Old US 395 and 
Franktown Road (APN 055-042-37). The subject parcel is approximately 42 acres and has a Washoe 
Couty master plan designation of Rural (R) and a zoning designation of General Rural (GR). To facilitate future 
development of the site, the property owner plans to submit a master plan amendment to Rural Residential 
and a regulatory zone amendment to Medium Density Rural (MDR), allowing a minimum lot size of 4 acres 
and a maximum density of one unit per 5 acres. The proposed change to MDR would be consistent with the 
adjacent parcels to the west that are currently zoned MDR.    
 
If you have questions about the meeting or would like to discuss the proposed development project, please 
contact: Stacie Huggins, shuggins@woodrodgers.com, 775-823-5258. 

Note this is not a public hearing, and public officials will not be present. If you have questions 
regarding meeting requirements, please contact the Washoe County Staff Planner Chris Bronczyk: 
cbronczyk@washoecounty.gov or 775-328-6100. 
 
To review information about neighborhood meetings, please visit: https://neighborhood-washoe.hub.arcgis.com/  
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